
  

 

CITY OF LYNDEN  

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT  
Main Number: (360) 354-3446  

  

  

Public Works Committee Meeting Agenda  
Microsoft Teams Virtual Meeting 

City Hall - 300 Fourth Street 
4:15 PM November 04, 2020 

Call to Order 

Action Items 

1. Approve Public Works Committee Minutes of October 7, 2020 

2. 2021 Budget Addendum: Utility Rates and Fees 
The attached rates and fees will be included in the 2021 budget. Rate increases include 
2% for new connections' General Facility Capital Improvement (FCI) charges (Water and 
Sewer) and 10% for Stormwater rates and Stormwater Management General Facility 
Capital Improvement charges. 

3. 302 Front Street ADA Parking 
Re-visiting the discussion from July, 2020 regarding a request for an ADA parking stall at 
302 Front Street [Meraki Salon & Shop]. At that time, the Public Works Committee 
supported the installation of an additional ADA parking stall near 302 Front Street. 
However, after investigating how this will affect downtown parking, the City crew found that 
adding an ADA parking stall at 302 Front Street will eliminate two parking stalls while 
creating one ADA parking stall. 

4. PROJECT - Cured In Place Pipe (CIPP) Projects: 
Industrial Condensate Pipeline CIPP - 1,340 of pipe beginning at Riverview Road 
extending south along Hannegan Road 
BC Avenue to 8th Street CIPP - 1,050 of 8" clay sewer main beginning at BC Avenue 
ending at 8th Street between Edson Street and Glenning Street 
Advertised in Lynden Tribune 10/28 and 11/4 
Support to proceed directly to Council upon receipt of favorable bids for both Cured In 
Place Pipe (CIPP) projects. 

5. Industrial Condensate Pipeline Hannegan Manholes 
Small Works Roster project to replace five sanitary sewer manholes along Hannegan 
Road beginning at Riverview Road and extending south about one quarter mile. 
Support to proceed directly to Council upon receipt of favorable bids. 

6. Biosolids Beneficial Use Services - Boulder Park Contract Renewal 
The City of Lynden originally entered into an agreement with King County and Boulder 
Park in 2004 for the purpose of shipping any biosolids from the Wastewater Treatment 
Plant that are not used in the production of compost.   

Page 1



 
 
 
 
  

Information Items 

7. Lynden Rec Center (Old YMCA) 
Commercial Inspection was completed on October 29th by Pillar to Post. 
Weekly janitorial service was started on October 23 and will continue every Friday through 
2020. 

8. 2020-2021 Draft Snow Route Map 

9. PROJECT - Airport PAPI Lights 
Installation was completed on October 30th. 

10. PROJECT - 17th Street Extension 
Curb and gutter are complete. The paving scheduled for the week of November 9th may 
be extended due to weather. The draft preliminary assessment roll for sidewalk, water and 
sewer improvements has been compiled. 

11. PROJECT - Berthusen Park Restrooms 
The restroom structure was delivered on October 29th. 

12. PROJECT - Judson Street Low Impact Development 
Meeting with some of the property owners on Thursday, November 5th at 4:00 and 5:00 
p.m.  

13. PROJECT - Pepin Creek Main Street Bridge 
Bridge girder orders are nine months out, so project could take two 'fish window' cycles to 
complete. Creative construction options are being considered to minimize impact. 

14. PROJECT - Fire Station Renovation 
Proposed project schedule: Advertise for bids 11/4 and 11/11. Builders Exchange of 
Washington is handling distribution of plans and specifications. Bid Opening 12/3, City 
Council for Approval 12/21, Notice to Proceed with Construction 1/10/2021. 
Fire Department is currently negotiating a lease for temporary space during construction. 

Adjournment 

Next Meeting: December 9, 2020 

Page 2



 

 
  
 Public Works Committee Minutes  Page 1 of 3 

October 7, 2020 

 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
360-354-3446 

CITY OF LYNDEN 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

4:00 PM October 7, 2020 
Microsoft Teams Virtual Meeting 

City Hall 2nd Floor Large Conference Room 
 

1. ROLL CALL  
 

Members Present: Mayor Scott Korthuis; Councilors Gary Bode, Ron De Valois, Jerry 
Kuiken  

 
Staff Present: City Administrator Mike Martin; Public Works Director Steve Banham, 

Programs Manager Mark Sandal, Sr. Admin. Assistant Miriam Kentner  
 

Public Present: Gary Vis 
  

2. ACTION ITEMS 
 

A. Approve Minutes from September 9, 2020 
De Valois motioned to approve the minutes and Kuiken seconded the motion. 
Action 
The minutes from September 9, 2020 were approved. 
 

B. 2021 Budget Review: Capital Projects  
Banham presented the 2021 Public Works Capital Projects budget for review.   
Action 
The Public Works Committee concurred to support the 2021 Public Works Capital 
Projects budget and recommended that staff continue to work to include these 
projects in the budget that the Mayor brings to City Council for approval.  
 

C. Development Standards Revisions 
Banham and Sandal presented the list of revisions to the Project Manual for Engineering 
Design and Development Standards document for review. Banham explained that City 
Attorney Bob Carmichael is also reviewing and updating the legal language.   
 
Sandal stated there is an update to the stormwater civil review deposit (currently $200 
per unit), and the fee will be updated to reflect the standard with the committee on a 
yearly basis. 
Action 
The Public Works Committee concurred to support the revisions to the Project 
Manual for Engineering Design and Development Standards. Once reviewed these 
revisions will be brought to City Council for approval.  
 
  

 
 

Page 3

Item #1.



 

 
   
 Public Works Committee Minutes Page 2 of 3 

October 7, 2020 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

A. COVID-19 Wastewater Testing Status Update 
Covid-19 test results from the City’s wastewater system are currently being reviewed by 
staff. Staff is working to create a contract to transfer further testing assignments to 
Whatcom County Health Department who will then take over the funding for the testing.  

 
B. Department of Ecology Grant Applications – Final Budget 

1) Northwest Washington Fairgrounds Stormwater Improvements 
Banham stated that a grant is being submitted for stormwater improvements at the 
Northwest Washington Fairgrounds. The fairgrounds will supply the 25% match to 
the requested DOE (75%) grant funds. 
  

2) Judson Street Low Impact Development (Construction Phase 1)  
Banham stated staff is submitting a Department of Ecology grant application by 
September 13th for the first phase of construction (8th Street and alleys between 9th 

Street and 7th Street). This grant would cover 75% of the allowable costs with the 
City providing matching funds from TBD and from the Sewer Fund. 
 

C. Lynden Recreation Center (Old YMCA) 
Bode mentioned that re-opening the pool at the “Lynden Recreation Center”, formerly 
the YMCA, has received a positive response from the public. Bode stated that he heard 
that over 500 requests were received from the public to reserve the use of the pool. The 
Committee discussed the age and condition of the building and who would be financially 
responsible for future improvements.  Banham stated a Washington Recreation and 
Conservation Office (RCO) Youth Activities Grant might be a possible source of funding 
for future improvements. 
 

D. PROJECT: 17th Street Extension  
Sandal stated Stremler Gravel should start work this week and close 17th Street north to 
Main Street, Village Drive, and Double Ditch Road to all but local traffic.  They are 
currently scheduled to do paving at the end of October.  

 
E. PROJECT: Berthusen Park Restrooms 

Sandal stated that he held a pre-construction meeting with Tiger Construction last 
Friday. Arrival of the prefab building is expected to take at the end of this month. 

 
F. PROJECT: Cured in Place Pipe (CIPP) 

There are two projects in final design that will be going out to bid later this month for the 
installation of the cured in place pipe (CIPP) lining within existing pipes: a) the Sewer 
Main Line between 10th Street and B.C. Avenue between Liberty and Glenning Streets 
and b) the Industrial Condensate Line from Riverview Road to Hannegan Road. Sandal 
asked the committee for support to proceed directly to City Council upon receipt of 
favorable bids. The Committee concurred. 

 
G. PROJECT: Industrial Condensate Outfall 

Banham stated that permits have been submitted to the Army Corps of Engineers for 
review. Mitigation planting will take place next year around the outfall. 
 
Construction of the Industrial Condensate Outfall is expected to be complete next year 
before the close of the fish window in mid-October.   

Page 4

Item #1.



 

 
   
 Public Works Committee Minutes Page 3 of 3 

October 7, 2020 

H. PROJECT: Jim Kaemingk Sr. Trail Gap – Depot Road to Main Street 
Banham stated that the City was informed that it ranked 21 out of 29 which makes I 
unlikely that we will receive funding from the Washington Recreation and Conservation 
Office (RCO) Board for the Jim Kaemingk Sr. Trail project.  
 
Banham stated that the presentation was well received. However, the funding went to 
projects with locations that served more of a region purpose.  

 
I. PROJECT: Guide Meridian Pump Station 

Banham stated staff is continuing to work on the Guide Meridian Pump Station Project 
which would serve the area near Flynn Road and Bay-Lyn Drive. Due to the location of 
the pump station, the pipeline to the west will probably need to be in Whatcom County 
necessitating permits from the County. The City intends to create a Latecomer 
Agreement for these improvements, not unlike the East Lynden Sewer Assessment.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1) Parking Standards Spaces 
Bode asked the Committee to consider reviewing the number of parking spaces required 
for residential development, particularly senior housing. There was also discussion of 
street widths to accommodate on-street parking. Mayor Korthuis agreed with reviewing 
parking requirement and looking at other municipalities for examples. the Mayor stated 
that this discussion should take place in Community Development. Banham encouraged 
Bode to bring this to the next Community Development Meeting.  

 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:15 p.m. 
 

Page 5

Item #1.



[HS1] 

CITY OF LYNDEN 2020 2021 BUDGET 

ADDENDUM A  

Water Rates 

The following rates are adopted with the budget with an effective date of June 1, 20202021. 

CUSTOMER CATEGORY 
MONTHLY 

BASE CHARGE 
(Per Unit) 

VOLUME 
CHARGE 

<5ccf 

VOLUME 
CHARGE 
5-18 ccf 

VOLUME 
CHARGE 

>18ccf 

Single Family & Duplex (w/ Separate Meters) 

¾”  $   31.85   $   1.57   $   2.07   $  3.15 

1”    48.36   1.57    2.07  3.15 

1.5”    94.64          1.57   2.07  3.15 

2”   150.68   1.57    2.07  3.15 

Low Income Senior Discount       7.35    

 

 
CUSTOMER CATEGORY 

MONTHLY BASE 

CHARGE2 

(per Unit) 

VOLUME 
CHARGE   
(per ccf1) 

 

Multi-Family, including Duplex (w/ Single, Shared Meter) 
Business/Commercial/Industrial 

 

¾” $   31.85  $    1.95  

1”    52.56      1.95  

1.5”  102.67      1.95  

2”  163.07     1.95  

3”    325.09  1.95  

4”    505.97     1.95  

6”    1,009.31     1.95  

8”    1,613.60     1.95  
    

Grounds (Irrigation) Meter  

¾”        $  31.85  $    2.62  

1”            52.56     2.62  

1.5”          102.67     2.62 
2”           163.07     2.62  

3”          325.09  2.62  

4”          505.97  2.62  
    

Hydrant Meters    $163.07 $   3.15  
    

Outside City Limits Multiplier 1.5  

 

Associations (Wholesale) (multiplier already included in rate)  

Berthusen (4-inch) $   758.96 $     2.13 

Twin Ditch (1½-inch) $     154.00   $     2.132.35 

Meadowbrook/Northwood (1½”) 244.60  2.132.35 

Berthusen (4 inch) $   758.96 $     2.132.35 

NOTES: 

1. The volume charge is for each hundred cubic feet (ccf) - approximately 748 gallons. 

2. In addition to charges levied herein, an additional charge of 6.5% shall be assessed, which shall 
be paid into the Water Debt Reduction Fund to be used exclusively for debt reduction for 
construction debt. 

3. In addition to charges levied herein, an additional 2% Utility Tax shall be assessed per City 
Ordinance. 

Page 6

Item #2.



 

CITY OF LYNDEN 20210 BUDGET 

ADDENDUM A  

Water Rates, Continued 

 
Classification Information: 

A. Single Family shall include Mobile Homes. 

B. Business/Commercial/Industrial(Non-Permit) covers all non-residential uses, including: 
Offices and Retail Stores, Churches, Recreation Centers, Service/Gas Stations, 
Fairgrounds, Hotels/Motels, Nursing Homes, Assisted Living Facilities (without full 
kitchens, including oven and cooktop), Food and Beverage Establishments, 
Laundromats, Car Washes, Schools, and Industries which the City has determined do 
not require a NPDES Permit. 

C. Grounds services shall be for all non-potable uses, including irrigation. 

  

Page 7

Item #2.



 
 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 20202021 BUDGET 

ADDENDUM B 

Water General Facility Capital Improvement (FCI) Charges  

 

The following rates are adopted with the budget and become effective January 1, 20202021. 
The rate table below revises increases the charges for outside City Limits connections and 
incorporates meter installation fees already in effectby 2% to reflect increases in the cost of 
construction2[SB2].  
 
Residential: 
 FCI Charge Meter Installation Fee 
Single Family (1 ERU) $5,095 5,197  $309 $315 
Duplex (per unit)1 $5,095 5,197 $309 $315 
Multi-family (3+ units, per unit)2 $3,936 $4,015 Same as Commercial below 

 
Commercial (Non-Residential) and Industrial: 

Meter Size FCI Charge Meter Installation Fee  

3/4-inch* $5,095 $5,197 $309 $315  

1-inch $8,503 $8,673 $432 $441  

1-1/2-inch $16,984 $17,324 $1,674 $1,707  

2-inch $27,218 $27,762 $1,901 $1,939  

3-inch $54,436 $55,525 $2,358 $2,405  

4-inch $85,026 $86,727 time & material3  

6-inch $169,838 $173,235 time & material3  

8-inch $271,740 $277,175 time & material3  

Additional Information: 

A. When a service is changed from a smaller meter to a larger meter, the fee calculation 
shall be the difference between the two. 

B. When a service is changed from a larger meter to a smaller meter, there will be no fee 
credit adjustment. 

C. Water Associations identified by the Washington State Department of Health (WSDOH) 
as having a contaminated groundwater source and which agree to connect to the City of 
Lynden for wholesale water supply will not be charged a General Facilities Capital 
Improvement (FCI) Charge per the terms of WSDOH loans provided to the City in 2013 
for the treatment facility. 

D. Water connections outside the City Limits will have a 1.5 multiplier applied to the 
above connection charges.  New connections outside the City Limits are only allowed 
with City Council approval. 

  

                                                 
1 Both units must be metered unless authorized by Public Works Director 
2 Multifamily charges are based on 75% of Single Family ERU 
3 Actual Cost.  Estimate to be provide by City, upon request, prior to installation Page 8

Item #2.



 

 
CITY OF LYNDEN 2020 BUDGET 

ADDENDUM C 

SEWER RATES 

 
The following rates are adopted with the budget with an effective date of June 1, 
20202021. 
A Late Payment Fee has been added for Industrial Users. 

CONSUMER CATEGORY 
MONTHLY BASE 

CHARGE 
CHARGE 
PER UNIT 

   

Single Family, Duplex, and/or a Multi-Family Dwelling Unit 
with a Separate Individual Meter 

$    49.85  N/A 

   

Multi-Family (Including Duplex) with a Connected Single Meter 
Serving All Units 
 First dwelling unit 
 Each additional dwelling unit 

Mobile Home additional unit 

 
 

$    49.85 
$    37.38 
$    28.03 

 
 
 N/A 
 N/A 

N/A 
   

Business/Commercial/Industrial – NPDES 1 Not Required  
 Basic Charge 
 Volume Charge: per 100 cubic feet (ccf) 

 
$    49.85 

$      2.77 
   

Industrial Users – NPDES 1 Permitted 
 Basic Charge 
 Volume Charge: per 100 cubic feet (ccf) 
 BOD Charge: per pound (lb) 
 TSS Charge: per pound (lb) 
 BOD Testing Fee (per sample)2 
 TSS Testing Fee (per sample)2 

 
 $    99.70 

 
 
 

$    52.70 ea 
$    19.00 ea 

          

 
$     2.16 
$       .73 
$       .72 

Outside City Limits Multiplier3  1.5  

Additional Information: 

A. Business/Commercial/Industrial (Non-NPDES Permit) covers all non-residential uses, 
including: Offices and Retail Stores, Churches, Recreation Centers, Service/Gas Stations, 
Fairgrounds, Hotels/Motels, Nursing Homes, Assisted Living Facilities (without full kitchens, 
including oven and cooktop), Food and Beverage Establishments, Laundromats, Car 
Washes, Schools, and Industries which the City has determined do not require an NPDES 
Permit. 

B. Multi-Family shall include apartments, duplexes, Independent Living Facilities, and multiple 
condominium units served by a single meter. 

C. Mixed Use (with a single meter).  Consumer Category to be determined by Public Works.  
D. A non-representative sample will be billed as if 100% of the Daily Maximum Demand was 

delivered. 
E. If an Industrial User exceeds the permit limit for Flow, BOD or TSS; it will result in a rate 3-

times the established per unit rate, for each violation over the permit or contract limit. 
F. A pH reading outside the permit limit will result in a rate 3-times the established rate for flow 

for the period of violation. 
G. A concentration level in mg/l over the permit or contract level will result in a rate three (3) 

times the established per unit rate for the permit or contract charge. 

                                                 
1 National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) 
2 A late payment charge 5% will be added to payments not made within 30 days of invoice 
3 Residential Outside City Limits Multiplier applied to Base Rate; Commercial Outside City Limits 

Multiplier applied to Base Rate and Unit Volume; and installation of flow meter(s) will be required. Page 9

Item #2.



 
 
 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 20202021 BUDGET 

ADDENDUM D  

Sewer General Facility Capital Improvement Charges (FCI) 

 
The following rates are adopted with the budget and become effective January 1, 20202021. 
There is no a 2% increase proposed over the 2019 2020 charges to reflect the increased cost of 
construction. 
 

The general FCI charges applicable to all areas served by the City are shown in the table below 
in the “All Areas” column and those additional FCI charges only applicable to the East Lynden/ 
Line Road Sub-Basin, per Ordinance No. 1447, are shown in the “East Lynden” column: 
 

 

 
 

Consumer Category Unit All Areas  East Lynden  

Single Family Residential 
Unit  

$     6,9867,126 

 

         $     
5,1965,300 

           

Duplex Per unit    6,9867,126 

 

                 
5,1965,300 

Multi-Family 
3 or 4 unit building 
5 or more unit building Per unit 

Per unit 
    5,175 5,279 
     4,3774,465 

 
                  

3,7303,805 
             

3,1373,200 
 

Mobile Home Parks 
First 4 pads 
5 or more pads 

Per pad 
Per pad 

 
    5,1755,279 
    4,377 4,465 

 

              
3,7303,805 

              
3,1373,200 

 
Business, Commercial and 
Industrial Users 
 

Meter Size All Areas East Lynden  

 ¾-inch           $      5,1755,279           $      
3,7303,805 

1-inch          $      8,6258,798           $      
6,2116,335 

1½-inch          $    17,24017,585           $    
12,40912,657 

2-inch          $    27,38127,929            $   
19,85920,256 

3-inch          $   55,14756,250           $    
39,70840,502 

4-inch          $    86,15387,876           $    
62,03463,275 

6-inch          $  
172,296175,742 

          $ 
124,050126,531 

8-inch          $  
275,667281,180  

          $  
177,564181,115 

Page 10

Item #2.



 
Classification Information: 

1. Single Family shall include Mobile Homes. 

2. Business and Commercial covers all non-residential uses, including: Offices and Retail 
Stores (with or without public restrooms), Industrial Users (not requiring an NPDES Permit), 
Churches, Recreation Centers, Service/Gas Stations, Fairgrounds, Nursing Homes, 
Assisted Living Facilities, without full kitchen (including oven and cooktop) Food and 
Beverage Establishments, Laundromats, Car Washes, and Schools. 

3. Where a property owner is eliminating a septic system and connecting to the City’s sanitary 
sewer system, the “All Areas” FCI charges shown above may be waived, Per LMC 
13.12.55. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 11

Item #2.



 

CITY OF LYNDEN 20202021 BUDGET 

ADDENDUM E 

STORMWATER RATES 
 

The following stormwater rates reflect a 10% adjustment effective June 1, 20202021. 
 
 

Customer Category Monthly Base Rate 
Per Residential Unit 

Monthly Increment Rate 

   

Single Family, Duplex and/or Multi-Family 
Dwelling Unit with Individual Meter  

        $      8.80 9.68 N/A 

   

Non Single Family (NSF)  Monthly Base Rate 
(up to 10,000 sf 

Impervious Surface Area 

Monthly Increment Rate 
(over 10,000 sf Impervious  

Surface Area) 

Non-Single Family          $    13.7015.07 $    6.717.38 per each 5,000 sf  

NSF w/ Provision of Water Quality          $    13.7015.07 $    5.506.05 per each 5,000 sf  

NSF w/ Provision of Water Quality & 
Detention 

         $    13.7015.07 $    3.413.75 per each 5,000 sf  

NSF w/ Provision of Water Quality & 
Retention 

         $    13.7015.07 $    1.791.97 per each 5,000 sf  

 
 
 
 
  

Page 12

Item #2.



 
 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN 20202021 BUDGET 

ADDENDUM F 

Stormwater Management General Facility Capital Improvement Charges (FCI) 

 
The following (New Stormwater Connection) rates reflect a 10% adjustment effective 
January 1, 20202021. 
 

Customer Category Base Fee Increment over 10,000 SF 

Single Family, Duplex and/or Multi-
Family Dwelling Unit with Individual 
Meter  1 

$  330363.00 /unit Not Applicable 

Non-Single Family (up to 10,000 sf) $  657723.00 
  Additional $ 284312.00 for 
each  
      5,000 sf over 10,000 sf 

Non-Single Family w/  
Water Quality Treatment        $  657723.00 

Additional $ 212233.00 for 
each 5,000 sf over 10,000 sf 

Non-Single Family w/ 
Detention and Water Quality 
Treatment (up to 10,000 sf) 

       $  657723.00 
Additional $ 142.00 for each 

5,000 sf over 10,000 sf 

Non-Single Family w/ 
Retention and Water Quality 
Treatment (up to 10,000 sf) 

       $  657723.00 
Additional $  71.00 for each 

5,000 sf over 10,000 sf 

 

1  Platted Subdivisions that have constructed City approved stormwater facilities that meet City Standards 

for water quality and quantity as part of the plat are exempt from General Facility Improvement 
Charges. 

 
 

Page 13

Item #2.



302 Front Street [Meraki Salon and Shop] 

 

Page 14

Item #3.



 
  

2021 

BIOSOLIDS BENEFICIAL USE SERVICES FOR 
THE CITY OF LYNDEN AT THE BOULDER PARK 

PROJECT 

CONTRACT No. 
21-0002       

Page 15

Item #6.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
DEFINITION OF WORDS AND TERMS 
 
SECTION 1       PURPOSE ............................................................................................. 3 
SECTION 2       BPI’S RESPONSIBILITIES .................................................................... 4 
SECTION 3       KING COUNTY’S REPSONSIBILITIES ................................................. 5 
SECTION 4       JOINT BPI/KC’S RESPONSIBILITIES .................................................. 6 
SECTION 5       GENERATOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES ................................................... 6 
SECTION 6       TERMS OF CONTRACT ....................................................................... 7 
SECTION 7       BASIS FOR PAYMENT ......................................................................... 7 
SECTION 8       PRICE ADJUSTEMENTS ...................................................................... 8 
SECTION 9       ADDITIONAL WORK ............................................................................. 8 
SECTION 10     LIABILITY OF THE PARTIES ................................................................ 9 
SECTION 11     TRANSFER OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES ......................... 9 
SECTION 12      COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS AND 
                           REGULATIONS AND BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES ................. 9 
SECTION 13     BIOSOLIDS QUANTITIES AND CHARACTERISTICS ....................... 10 
SECTION 14     INSURANCE ....................................................................................... 10 
SECTION 15     COORDINATION WITH THE GENERATOR’S TREATMENT PLANT 12 
SECTION 16     DAMAGES .......................................................................................... 12 
SECTION 17     TERMINATION OR CONTRACT SUSPENSION ................................ 12 
SECTION 18     RECORDS, REPORTS, AND MEETINGS .......................................... 13 
SECTION 19     INDEMNIFICATION ............................................................................. 13 
SECTION 20     DISPUTES UNDER THIS CONTRACT ............................................... 14 
SECTION 21     SEVERABILITY ................................................................................... 14 
SECTION 22     INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR......................................................... 14 
SECTION 23     FORCE MAJEURE .............................................................................. 14 
SECTION 24     NON-WAIVER ..................................................................................... 15 
SECTION 25     ASSIGNMENT ..................................................................................... 15 
SECTION 26     NOTICES ............................................................................................ 15 
SECTION 27     ENTIRE CONTRACT; AMENDMENT ................................................. 15 
SECTION 28     COUNTERPARTS; ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES …………………     16 
SECTION 29     AUTHORITY  ……………………………………………………………….16 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A:   PROJECT ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES 
B:   EQUIPMENT USE FEE RATE TABLE 
C:   SPILL PREVENTION & RESPONSE PLAN 
D:   KING COUNTY LETTER OF SELF-INSURANCE 

  

Page 16

Item #6.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  2 

DEFINITION OF WORDS AND TERMS 
 
Words and terms shall be given their ordinary and usual meanings.  Where used in the Contract documents, 
the following words and terms shall have the meanings indicated.  The meanings shall be applicable to the 
singular, plural, masculine, feminine and neuter of the words and terms. 
 
 Beneficial Use Facility, or BUF:  means a receiving-only facility consisting of a site or sites where 

biosolids from other treatment works treating domestic sewage are applied to the land for beneficial 
use, which has been permitted as a treatment works treating domestic sewage in accordance with 
the provisions of WAC 173-308-310, and that has been designated as a beneficial use facility 
through the permitting process. 

 
 Biosolids: the nutrient-rich product of the wastewater treatment process that meets requirements for 

beneficial use and used to improve soil characteristics and enhance plant growth and crop yield. 
Biosolids are not considered a commercial fertilizer. Regulations established two classes of biosolids: 
Class A, which has no detectable pathogens, and Class B, which is treated, but may have some 
detectable pathogens.  

 
 Boulder Park Inc., or BPI:  designates the farmer-owned company with headquarters in Mansfield, 

Washington, that manages biosolids land application operations. 
 
 Boulder Park Project, or BPP:  designates the name of the biosolids land application project in 

Douglas County in operation since 1992. This project is jointly operated and managed as a BUF by 
BPI and King County as outlined in Attachment A, Project Roles and Responsibilities from Contract 
#471783. 

 
Contractor:  The individual, association, partnership, firm, company, corporation, or combination 
thereof, including joint ventures, contracting with the Generator for the performance of services or 
Work under this Contract. 

 
Generator: the city, town, district, municipal corporation or other entity or person who generates 
biosolids during the treatment of domestic sewage in a treatment works and has as one of its 
responsibilities the treatment, transport, use or disposal of biosolids. For purposes of this 
Agreement, the term Generator means the City of Lynden. 

  
Party or Parties:  City of Lynden (Generator), King County (KC), and Boulder Park Inc. (BPI). 

 
 Person:  Includes individuals, associations, firms, companies, corporations, partnerships, and joint 

ventures. 
 
 Project:  Same as Boulder Park Project (BPP).  
 
 Project Participants: General term to include the primary people who are involved with the Boulder 

Park Project (BPP).  This would include the local farmers, local government agencies, local residents, 
Washington State Department of Ecology (Ecology), other public agencies, Washington State 
University extension service, etc.  

 
 Shall or Will:  Whenever used to stipulate anything, Shall or Will means mandatory by either BPI, KC 

or the Generator, as applicable, and means that BPI, KC, or the Generator, as applicable, has thereby 
entered into a covenant with the other Party or Parties to do or perform the same. 

 
 Soil Amendment Value:  A monetary value that the farmer agrees to pay BPI for the nutrient, organic 

matter and other benefits of biosolids to the soil and crop. 
 

Page 17

Item #6.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  3 

 Subcontractor:  The individual, association, partnership, firm, company, corporation, or joint venture 
entering into an agreement with BPI and/or KC to perform any portion of the Work covered by this 
Contract. 

 
 Work:  Everything to be done and provided by BPI and KC for the fulfillment of the Contract. 
 
 
 This Contract is made and entered into effective as of January 1, 2021 by and between the City of 
Lynden, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter referred to as the “Generator”), Boulder Park Inc., a 
Washington corporation (hereinafter referred to as “BPI”), and King County, a home rule charter county of 
the State of Washington (hereinafter referred to as “KC”). The Generator, BPI and KC may also be 
collectively referred to as the “Parties” and individually as a “Party.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

 WHEREAS, the Generator produces biosolids as a by-product of its wastewater treatment process 
and desires to manage and beneficially use such biosolids in accordance with Chapter 173-308 WAC 
Biosolids Management and 40 CFR Part 503; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Washington State Department of Ecology (Ecology) supports and encourages 
maximum beneficial use of biosolids per Chapter 173-308-010(2)(a); and  
 

WHEREAS, the state of Washington recognizes biosolids as a valuable commodity and does not 
classify biosolids as solid waste per Chapter 173-308-060(1) and (2); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Boulder Park Project (BPP), located in Douglas County, Washington, is a 
Beneficial Use Facility (BUF) that has been permitted by the Ecology for the application of biosolids; and 
 
 WHEREAS, BPI and KC have entered into a contract to jointly manage and operate the BPP in 
accordance with all applicable local, state and federal laws, regulations and best management practices 
regarding applying dewatered biosolids to lands for beneficial use; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Generator desires to enter into this Contract with BPI and KC for (a) land 
application of the Generator's biosolids at the BPP, and (b) for the use of KC's equipment to apply the 
Generator 's biosolids; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the environment, the public health, safety, and welfare of 
the citizens served by Generator, and the Generator, that this Contract be entered into; and 
 
 WHEREAS, all Parties agree to support and work towards excellence in biosolids management 
practices and provide meaningful opportunities for public participation. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein contained and 
for other good and valuable consideration, it is hereby agreed as follows: 
 
SECTION 1  PURPOSE 
 
 1.1 The purpose of this Contract is (a) to allow the Generator to purchase BPI's services, which 
shall include all work necessary for the beneficial utilization of the Generator's Class A or Class B biosolids 
(hereafter referred to as “biosolids”) at the BPP and (b) to allow the Generator to pay a use fee for KC's 
biosolids application equipment for BPI to use in land application of the Generator's biosolids. 
 
 1.2 The further purpose of this Contract is to provide the Generator with a biosolids 
management and utilization option to complement the Generator’s other biosolids management contracts. 
The Generator has the sole right to allocate the biosolids deliveries among its biosolids contractors. 
 

Page 18

Item #6.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  4 

 1.3 The Generator may provide the BPP with biosolids during the months of January through 
December to ensure year-round responsiveness. 
 

1.4 The Generator will provide BPI with an estimated schedule of deliveries. The Generator in 
its sole discretion, may adjust its estimated schedule of deliveries upon reasonable notice to BPI.  Such 
schedule shall include estimated quantities and estimated timing of deliveries consistent with the operating 
plan and distribution needs. 

 
1.5 During the term of the Contract, BPI agrees to accept up to one hundred (100) percent of 

the Generator’s biosolids that have a total solids content of no less than ten (10) percent.  Biosolids having 
a total solids content of less than 10 percent may be accepted at BPI’s sole discretion and may be subject 
to additional charges for any additional work per Section 9.  

 
1.6 All biosolids provided to the BPP by the Generator shall meet Table 3 – Pollutant 

Concentration Limits contained in WAC 173-308-160 (Biosolids pollutant limits); the pathogen reduction 
requirements of WAC 173-308-170; and, the vector attraction reduction (VAR) requirements of WAC 173-
308-180. The Generator shall immediately notify BPI and KC if the Generator’s biosolids do not meet any 
of the requirements described above.  

 
A. The Generator shall provide analytical results demonstrating biosolids quality and nutrient 

content appropriate for land application at the BPP. Biosolids analysis data and documentation 
shall include at a minimum the following parameters: 

 
• Part 503 Metals (arsenic, cadmium, copper, lead, mercury, molybdenum, nickel, 

selenium, zinc). Refer to WAC 173-308-160. 
• Fecal Coliform. Refer to WAC 173-308-170. 
• VAR. Refer to WAC 173-308-180. 
• Nutrients (total Kjeldahl nitrogen, ammonia-nitrogen, phosphorus, potassium, sulfur). 
• Percent total solids. 

 
B. Biosolids that do not meet VAR requirements, and/or that do not have sufficient documentation, 

will be incorporated into the soil within six hours after being applied to the land to meet the 
requirements of WAC 173-308-210(4)(b). The six-hour tillage work shall be subject to additional 
charges per Section 7.2(A) of this contract. 

 
1.7 Any material that fails to meet all requirements of WAC 173-308 for Class A or Class B 

biosolids classification cannot be accepted at the BPP for beneficial use and must be properly managed by 
Generator as solid waste or as determined by Ecology. 

 
SECTION 2 BPI’S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
 2.1 BPI shall be responsible for biosolids management as defined below, including transport 
and reuse after acceptance of biosolids from the Generator. Biosolids loaded into BPI’s method of transport 
shall be considered accepted by BPI when the method of transport departs the Generator’s site.   These 
biosolids management responsibilities shall include, but are not limited to, the following: 
 

A. Transportation of biosolids loaded into BPI-furnished equipment at the Generator’s site, to the 
location of ultimate disposition. All loads will be covered during transport; 
 

B. Ultimate disposition of biosolids including management, application, monitoring, permitting, 
record keeping, and reporting; 

 
C. Compliance with all local, state and federal laws and regulations applicable to said operations 

including best management practices; 
 

Page 19

Item #6.

KimM
Sticky Note
Removed maximum total solids content of 40%.

KimM
Highlight

KimM
Sticky Note
Specific testing requirements were not previously listed.  We have been performing all of these tests and providing them to King County.BPI action if VAR requirements were not met were not previously described.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  5 

D. Payment of employees, subcontractors, lenders and suppliers associated with BPI’s 
management and beneficial use of biosolids, and all related taxes, fees, charges and all other 
costs; and 

 
E. Maintenance and operation of all KC-owned equipment per the contractual agreement between 

KC and BPI (see Attachment A, Project Roles & Responsibilities from Contract #471783); 
 
F. Ensure contracted haulers always have a current Spill Prevention & Response Plan in all trucks 

hauling the Generator’s biosolids and that the haul contractor’s drivers know who to call in case 
of a spill, accident, or emergency. The Spill Prevention & Response Plan must meet the 
requirements of WAC 173-308-100(2). Attachment C of this contract includes a Spill Prevention 
& Response Plan that may be used; 

 
 2.2 BPI warrants and represents that it has the business, professional, and technical expertise 
necessary to manage, handle and utilize the Generator’s biosolids in a safe, prudent, workman-like, and 
legal manner. Furthermore, BPI warrants and represents that it has the equipment and employee resources 
required to perform this Contract, and that such equipment shall at all times, relevant to the performance 
of services hereunder, be maintained in a good and safe condition and fit for the use as required. 
 
 2.3 BPI shall keep all equipment and any application sites clean and orderly. No unsightly 
debris, broken down equipment, trash, garbage or deleterious materials not necessary for the operation 
shall be allowed to accumulate. BPI shall cooperate fully with the Generator to maintain the highest 
reasonable image for such services. The Generator shall have no responsibility for the selection or use of 
an application site by BPI and assumes no responsibility or liability for the adequacy or legality of such site 
for the beneficial use of biosolids. 
 

2.4 BPI is responsible for assuring that all transportation activities required under this Contract 
are performed by BPI or BPI’s subcontractor in compliance with any applicable federal, state or local 
environmental or public health laws, codes or regulations.  BPI is responsible for obtaining and maintaining 
all permits and registrations necessary for the transportation of the Generator’s biosolids. The Generator 
and BPI agree KC shall have no responsibility for any transportation or hauling activities related to the 
Generator’s biosolids.  

 
2.5 BPI shall be responsible for maintaining necessary security at application sites to protect 

public health and safety, and to avoid unauthorized uses of biosolids material. BPI shall not cause a 
nuisance, as defined in RCW 7.48.120, at any application site.  

 
2.6 BPI shall inform its personnel and/or any subcontractors that biosolids are a product of the 

wastewater treatment process derived from sewage treatment and that workers may be exposed to 
pathogens. The workers shall be advised on proper hygienic precautions when handling or being in contact 
with biosolids. 

 
SECTION 3 KING COUNTY’S RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
KC shall be responsible for the following:  
 

3.1  Provide access and use by BPI to project-specific KC-owned equipment, so BPI may use  
such equipment to apply the Generator’s biosolids as part of the BPP. It shall be known per this Contract 
that KC shall have first-right of usage as it relates to KC-owned equipment; 

 
3.2  Replace and/or refurbish KC-owned equipment per an equipment replacement schedule,  

which is part of the Equipment Use Fee Table provided as Attachment B and is incorporated by reference 
as if fully stated herein; 

 
3.3 Regularly communicate with BPI regarding daily project activities and perform routine site  

inspections; 

Page 20

Item #6.

KimM
Highlight

KimM
Sticky Note
Spill Prevention Plan requirements specified.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  6 

 
3.4  Calculate application rates based on the Generator’s current biosolids quality data (these  

calculations are reviewed by Washington State University research scientists and sent to Ecology for 
approval); 

 
3.5 Maintain and update the Biosolids Beneficial Use Services Contract and associated costs  

and price adjustments in accordance with Sections 7 and 8 of this Contract; 
 
3.6  Maintain and update the BPP Site-Specific Land Application Plan, and promptly provide  

any revisions to the Generator when periodic changes are made; and 
 
3.7 Secure and maintain all necessary state and local permits and/or approvals for biosolids  

to be applied at the BPP, and comply with all applicable federal, state and local regulations. 
 
SECTION 4 JOINT BPI/KC’s RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

4.1 BPI and KC shall be responsible for obtaining and maintaining all permits and registrations 
necessary for the management of biosolids land application. Costs for required permits and registrations 
shall be included in the Base Unit Price for biosolids management as described in Section 7.2 of this 
Contract. Upon request, BPI and KC shall provide the Generator with current copies of all permit 
applications, permits, registrations, records, and reports required by local, state and federal laws and 
regulations throughout the life of the Contract. Costs for documentation shall be included in the unit price 
for biosolids management. The Generator’s review of such documents is for its information only, implies no 
approval of BPI’s or KC’s compliance with applicable requirements, and in no way relieves BPI or KC of its 
obligations under this Contract. 

 
 4.2 BPI and KC shall be responsible for any public involvement or public information efforts 
associated with biosolids management outside of the Generator’s service area.  
 
SECTION 5 GENERATOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES  

 
Generator shall:  
 

5.1          Provide timely communication of any significant variation in biosolids quantities to be delivered; 
 

5.2 Scale and record wet tons of biosolids loaded into the contractor’s biosolids hauling equipment 
at the Generator site to document the tonnage of biosolids being hauled in accordance with state and federal 
trucking regulations and to delivered tonnage at location of ultimate disposition. If the Generator does not have 
access to a certified scale, the Generator will work with BPI to locate a certified scale where tonnage can 
accurately be weighed and recorded as presented in Section 7.1(A) of this contract; 

 
5.3 Provide documentation on a per load basis to BPI for reconciliation purposes that includes at 

a minimum the delivery date, driver name, delivery site ID or location description, and tonnage delivered. This 
information will be reconciled on a monthly basis to ensure accuracy and agreement by all Parties; 

 
5.4 Secure and maintain all necessary state and local permits and comply with all applicable  

federal, state and local regulations; 
 

5.5 Provide and or approve for use a Spill Prevention & Response Plan as required under 
WAC 173-308-100(2) and as provided in Attachment C. Ensure the contracted hauler has a current copy 
of the Spill Prevention & Response Plan in trucks hauling the Generator’s biosolids at all times and before 
leaving the Generator’s facility, and that the haul contractor’s drivers know who to call in case of a spill, 
accident, or emergency; 

 
5.6 Test its biosolids in accordance with applicable law; thoroughly review the reported analytical 

data for accuracy and completeness; provide BPI and KC the biosolids quality data necessary for BPI and KC 

Page 21

Item #6.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  7 

to use or otherwise manage the biosolids; and, immediately notify BPI and KC if the Generator’s biosolids do 
not meet any of the requirements in Section 1.6; 

 
5.7 Pay BPI and KC the amounts set forth in Sections 7, 8 and 9 of this Contract; and 

 
5.8 Not operate or maintain KC-owned equipment. 

 
SECTION 6 TERMS OF CONTRACT 
 
 6.1 The term of this Contract is from the effective date specified above to December 31, 2024. 
Any extension of the term of this Contract shall be in writing, mutually agreeable by BPI, KC and the 
Generator. 
 
 6.2 BPI’s and KC’s obligations and responsibilities shall commence upon full execution of this 
Contract.  
 
SECTION 7 BASIS FOR PAYMENT 
 
 7.1 BPI shall be paid based on wet weight for biosolids loaded in trucks and/or trailers provided 
by BPI for the purpose of transporting biosolids from the Generator’s treatment plant to BPI’s designated 
application sites.   
 

A. Wet weight shall be determined using a certified scale mutually acceptable to BPI and the 
Generator.  BPI shall be responsible for identifying certified scales and proposing scales to the 
Generator for acceptance if a certified scale is not available at the Generator’s site.  BPI shall 
maintain tare weights of trucks and/or trailers and provide a list of tare weights for each 
shipment in writing to the Generator prior to use in transporting biosolids. All trucks and trailers 
shall be readily identified by a unique number. The truck and trailer number shall be recorded 
at the time of weighing on the trip ticket. The forms and procedures for trip tickets and billing 
shall be developed by BPI and approved by the Generator prior to hauling biosolids.  

 
 7.2 BPI shall submit monthly billings in an approved format that has been reconciled with the 
Generator’s records.  Payment shall be made based on a cost per delivered wet ton of biosolids transported.  
Monthly billings received on or before the fifth day of that calendar month will be paid within thirty (30) days 
after receipt of an invoice. The Generator will pay BPI a Base Unit Price at the rate of $71.97 per wet ton 
(2020 dollars) for authorized materials accepted and/or services, satisfactorily performed, including the KC 
equipment use fee, as set forth in Attachment B. The Base Unit Price includes $3.40 plus $0.26 Tax [at 
Mansfield rate of 7.7%] for King County equipment, hereinafter called the “Equipment Use Fee”, and $68.31 
for BPI operations fee per wet ton (2020 dollars). Acceptance of such payment by BPI shall constitute full 
compensation for all tasks completed by BPI and KC, including but not limited to supervision, management, 
labor, supplies, materials, work equipment and the use thereof, and for all other necessary expenses 
incurred by BPI and KC in performing the services.  Adjustments shall be made in billing for errors in 
measurement discovered within twelve (12) months of the error. 
 

A. Biosolids that do not meet VAR requirements will be incorporated to meet the requirements of  
WAC 173-308-210(4)(b). The six-hour tillage work shall be subject to additional charges at the 
rate of $8.93 per wet ton (2020 dollars).  

 
7.3 BPI will submit a quarterly statement to KC that clearly shows the Generator’s tons applied, 

the site, and the month application occurred. After receipt and verification of the statement KC will submit 
an invoice to BPI for payment of the KC Equipment Use Fee. BPI shall pay the invoice and will remit 
payment to: 

Accounts Receivable  
King County Department of Finance 

500 Fourth Avenue, Room 620 
Seattle, WA  98104-2387 

Page 22

Item #6.

KimM
Highlight

KimM
Sticky Note
Increased from $69.47 in 2020.

KimM
Highlight

KimM
Sticky Note
Cost for BPI tillage work was not previously specified.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  8 

 
7.4 The BPI Base Unit Price shall include everything necessary for the prosecution and 

completion of the Contract including but not limited to furnishing all transportation costs, materials, 
application equipment use fee, tools, and all BPI and KC management, superintendence, labor and service, 
except as may be provided otherwise in the Contract, provided, Washington State sales tax is not included 
in the price. 
 
 7.5 The BPI Base Unit Price shall remain firm throughout the term of the contract, except for 
changes allowed in Section 8. Rate changes may also be made at the time this Contract is extended 
providing BPI and KC supply adequate documentation of the change in its costs acceptable to the 
Generator. Requests for any such change are to be made in writing to the Generator. Any agreed-to change 
shall take effect at the time of the Contract extension and shall remain in effect throughout the extension 
period. 
 

7.6 At the end of the calendar year, BPI will pay the Generator $7.50 per dry ton for soil 
amendment value of biosolids delivered to the BPP. This payment amount is fixed for the term of the 
contract and not subject to price adjustments in Section 8. 
 
SECTION 8 PRICE ADJUSTMENTS 
 
 8.1 Price adjustments may be made for changes of law or regulatory requirements based on 
documented cost increases or decreases, or tax increases. The Generator has the right to terminate this 
Contract, pursuant to Section 17, for changes of law or regulatory requirements if the Generator feels such 
increases are excessive. 
 
 8.2 Annual Adjustments for the Base Unit Price, except the Equipment Use Fee portion, will 
be adjusted using 100% of the annual percent change to the "All Items" category of the Seattle-Tacoma-
Bellevue Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Clerical Worker for the previous calendar 
year in which there was a positive adjustment. In the event the formula results in a negative, the adjustment 
shall be zero adjustment. Retroactive to each January 1 of each year, changes to the base rate will be 
calculated as follows:  

 
                              Example:  new application rate = previous rate X [current Annual CPI value / previous 

Annual CPI value for series ID: CWURS49DSA0] 
 

8.3 The Equipment Use Fee will remain fixed throughout the contract term, unless KC acquires 
and/or uses equipment not listed in Attachment B. In that case, KC shall modify Attachment B and the BPI 
Base Unit Price accordingly.   

 
8.4 There will be a fuel surcharge included with the submitted monthly billing defined in Section 

7.2 based on an average of the actual diesel fuel costs per gallon paid by BPI, or their subcontractor, in 
excess of four dollars ($4.00) per gallon. For the purpose of calculating this surcharge, BPI and the 
Generator agree that the surcharge will be based on 100 gallons of diesel fuel used per load transported 
to BPI. The amount of the fuel surcharge will be verified from copies of actual bulk diesel fuel purchase 
invoices for fuel deliveries to BPI, or their subcontractor, during the affected month. 

 
SECTION 9 ADDITIONAL WORK 
 
 Additional work means the furnishing of materials or equipment and/or the doing of work or service 
not presently contemplated by the Contract. If the Generator requires additional work, it may request BPI 
in writing to do the additional work at the Base Unit Price (as described in Section 7), or it may request BPI 
to do the additional work at a mutually agreed upon lump sum or mutually agreed upon unit prices. 
Performance of additional work without the prior express written consent of the Generator shall be at BPI’s 
sole expense. 
 
 

Page 23

Item #6.

KimM
Highlight

KimM
Sticky Note
Increased from $6.77 in previous contract.

KimM
Sticky Note
Removed from previous contract: "Conversely, the City will receive a credit toward its monthly payment due to BPI for fuel used for hauling if the price is less than $$3.00/gallon."



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  9 

SECTION 10 LIABILITY OF THE PARTIES 
 
 10.1 BPI, KC, and Generator accept the risks and resulting liabilities of beneficially using 
biosolids on agricultural lands. These risks potentially include, but are not limited to, the following:  
 

• Contamination of groundwater or surface water 
• Odor issues at the site and mitigating them for surrounding neighbors 
• Human health impacts 
• Impacts to crops, vegetation or livestock 

 
 10.2 BPI shall be responsible for securing conforming biosolids loaded into the means of 
transport selected by BPI against spillage, leakage or public exposure, and for providing properly designed 
locations for the safe and secure unloading of biosolids at BPI’s designated application sites. For the 
purposes of this agreement, conforming biosolids shall mean that all the Generator’s biosolids shall meet 
Ecology standards for regulated parameters as specified in Subsection 12.6. 
 
 10.3 Generator shall be responsible for compliance with all federal and state laws applicable 
to generators of biosolids and for compliance with all requirements set forth in this Contract. 
 
SECTION 11 TRANSFER OF MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
All biosolids accepted by BPI shall become BPI’s responsibility to manage under the terms of this contract. 
Acceptance of biosolids is considered to occur when the biosolids are delivered to the Boulder Park Project 
site. BPI shall accept all biosolids which are within the range of “Biosolids Quantities and Characteristics” 
as specified in Section 13 of the Contract.  BPI is solely responsible for the handling and ultimate disposition 
of all biosolids loaded onto the BPI-provided transportation.  
 
SECTION 12 COMPLIANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS AND    
  REGULATIONS AND BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 
 
 12.1 BPI and KC agree to comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws and regulations 
at all times and obtain and maintain all required permits and registrations necessary for the management 
of biosolids land application by BPI and KC. Specific laws and regulations specifically applicable to biosolids 
management include but are not limited to the following: 
 

• 40 CFR 503 Standards for the Use or Disposal of Sewage Sludge 
 

• WAC 173-308 Biosolids Management 
 

• WAC 173-200 Water Quality Standards for Groundwaters of the State of Washington 
 

• WAC 173-201A Water Quality Standards for Surface Waters of the State of Washington 
 
 12.2  BPI and KC shall be responsible for contacting all agencies and jurisdictions necessary to 
obtain any permits necessary for its performance under this Contract. BPI and KC shall contact Ecology for 
regulations and permits in effect when this Contract is in effect, including, without limitation, permits and 
regulations regarding the specific management methods proposed for use by BPI and KC with respect to 
the Generator’s biosolids. 
 
 12.3 BPI and KC shall manage biosolids using applicable best management practices. Best 
management practices may be found in the Biosolids Management Guidelines for Washington State 
published by Ecology. The most recent publication available on or before September 2010 shall be used 
as best management practices for the Contract. Updated versions of best management practices shall be 
incorporated into this Contract. 
 

Page 24

Item #6.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  10 

 12.4 Other permits and registrations, if any, shall be obtained and maintained by BPI and KC 
as required for the specific location of biosolids handling, application and disposition sites and specific 
biosolids management approaches at the project sites. BPI and KC shall be responsible for knowledge of 
and compliance with all laws, regulations and permits required for operation and maintenance of biosolids 
management application sites and functions. 
 

12.5 BPI and KC shall be responsible for all environmental compliance and monitoring required 
for the management of biosolids land application. The costs of this environmental compliance and 
monitoring shall be included in the Base Unit Price.   
 

12.6 The Generator will make available to BPI and KC all biosolids monitoring and 
environmental compliance required by its National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit 
and its Washington State General Permit for Biosolids Management, sections WAC 173-308-160 (Biosolids 
pollutant limits), WAC 173-308-170 (Pathogen reduction) and WAC 173-308-180 (Vector attraction 
reduction). Generator shall also provide BPI and KC with any results of additional testing performed by the 
Generator, at no cost to BPI and KC, when necessary for BPI and KC to perform under this Contract. 
 
SECTION 13 BIOSOLIDS QUANTITIES AND CHARACTERISTICS 
 
 13.1 The Generator may develop other biosolids management options during the term of this 
Contract, delivering biosolids in quantities in accordance with subsections 1.2 and 1.4. The Generator will 
provide biosolids on as uniform a basis as possible given influent wastewater variations, treatment process 
conditions, and solids handling operations. The Generator is responsible for reviewing plant records to 
determine, estimate and plan for annual, monthly, and weekly averages and variability and informing BPI 
and KC of substantial changes in biosolids quality. 
 
 13.2 The Generator certifies and affirms that its biosolids are produced from domestic, 
commercial and industrial wastewaters generated in the Generator’s wastewater service area. 
 
SECTION 14 INSURANCE  
 
 14.1 The Parties shall obtain and maintain the minimum insurance as set forth below covering 
the operations and activities required by the Contract.  By requiring such minimum insurance, the Parties 
shall not be deemed to have assessed the risks that may be applicable to each Party under this Contract.  
Each Party shall assess its own risks and, if it deems appropriate and/or prudent, maintain greater limits 
and/or broader coverage. 
 
Each Party shall also require its subcontractors to maintain the minimum insurance set forth below or such 
other minimum insurance as is appropriate with respect to the work to be performed.  Each Party shall 
obtain certificates of insurance for all of its subcontractors and make them available for inspection by the 
any other Party on request. 
 

14.1.1 Commercial General Liability. $1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence 
and for those policies with aggregate limits, a $2,000,000 aggregate limit.   

 
14.1.2 Automobile Liability. $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident. If the 

potential exists to release pollutants either as cargo or from the automobile (as defined by the standard 
auto policy exclusion of pollution) the auto policy shall be endorsed to include endorsement CA 9948 (or its 
equivalent).  

 
14.1.3 Workers’ Compensation. Statutory requirements of the State of residency. 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as Workers’ Compensation coverage, as required by the Industrial 
Insurance Act of the State of Washington, as well as any similar coverage required for this work by 
applicable Federal or “other States” State Law. 

 

Page 25

Item #6.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  11 

14.1.4 Employer’s Liability or “Stop Gap”. For a limit of $ 1,000,000 Coverage shall 
be at least as broad as the protection provided by the Workers Compensation policy Part 2 (Employers 
Liability) or, in states with monopolistic state funds, the protection provided by the “Stop Gap” endorsement 
to the general liability policy. 

 
14.1.5 Other Insurance Provisions. The insurance policies required in this Contract  

are to contain and be endorsed to contain the following provisions:  
 

1. With respect to all Liability Policies except Professional Liability and Workers 
Compensation: 

(i) BPI or its subcontractor shall add the other Parties, its officers, officials, 
employees, and agents to be covered as additional insureds as respects liability 
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of BPI or the subcontractor in 
connection with this Contract. The Generator shall add the other Parties, their 
officers, officials, employees and agents as additional insureds as respects liability 
arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of the Generator in connection 
with this Contract. The Parties acknowledge that KC maintains a self-insurance 
program for the handling of its liabilities, and as such, cannot add other parties as 
additional insureds.  

(ii) Each Parties’ insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects the other 
Parties, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and consultants. Any insurance 
and/or self-insurance maintained by the other Parties, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents and consultants shall not contribute with the Parties’ insurance 
or benefit the Party in any way. 

(iii) BPI or its subcontractors’ insurance shall apply separately to each insured against 
whom a claim is made and/or lawsuit is brought, except with respect to the limits 
of the insurer’s liability. 

14.1.6 In lieu of the aforementioned liability policies, KC, maintains a fully funded Self=Insurance 
program for the protection and handling of KC’s liabilities including injuries to persons and damage 
to property.  

 
14.1.7 In the alternative, a Party to this Contract may fulfill the insurance obligations contained 
herein by maintaining membership in a joint self-insurance program or risk pool authorized by 
applicable law. In this regard, the Parties understand that the Party to this Contract who is a 
member of such a joint self-insurance program or risk pool is not able to name the other Parties as 
an “additional insured” under the liability coverage provided by the joint self-insurance program or 
risk pool. 

 
14.2 Unless otherwise approved by the Parties, all insurance shall be on an “occurrence” basis and shall 
be maintained through the term of this Contract and for a period of three hundred sixty-five (365) days after 
termination or acceptance of work, as the case may be. All insurance shall be provided on forms and by 
insurance companies satisfactory to the Parties. 
 

14.3 Except as may be provided in Section 19 of this Contract, no provision in this Contract shall be 
construed to limit the liability of any Party as provided by law. Each Parties’ liability shall extend as far as 
the appropriate periods of limitation provided by law. 
  

14.4 BPI shall provide the other Parties with certificates and endorsements evidencing insurance from 
the insurer(s) certifying to the coverage of all insurance required herein within ten (10) days after final 
execution date of Contract. If BPI neglects to obtain and maintain in force any such insurance or deliver 
such policy or policies and receipts to the Generator, then the Generator may, at its option, terminate this 
Contract immediately, purchase required insurance coverage by withholding the premium amounts from 
payments due BPI, or demand BPI purchase the required insurance within a time frame acceptable to the 
Generator. 

Page 26

Item #6.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  12 

  
14.5 Failure to provide such required insurance shall entitle any Party to suspend or terminate the other 
Parties’ work hereunder for default in accordance with Subsection 17.2. Suspension or termination of this 
Contract shall not relieve any Party from its insurance obligations hereunder. 
 
SECTION 15 COORDINATION WITH THE GENERATOR’S TREATMENT PLANT 
 
 The Generator will provide BPI with e-mail notification when the normal weekly delivery schedule 
changes. The Generator will attempt to keep biosolids availability to BPI as uniform as possible.  
 
SECTION 16 DAMAGES 
 

Except as otherwise provided in this Contract should BPI fail to commence or continue performance 
of this Contract after the date of final execution of this Contract, BPI shall reimburse the Generator for the 
actual costs incurred by the Generator until other satisfactory arrangements for management of Generator’s 
biosolids up to the remaining term of this Contract can be implemented. The Generator shall have the right 
to deduct such costs or damages from any amount due, or that may become due BPI. The Generator 
agrees to make all reasonable and practicable efforts to mitigate its damages. 
 
SECTION 17 TERMINATION OR CONTRACT SUSPENSION  
 
 17.1 Any of the Parties may terminate this Contract in whole or in part for any reason or no 
reason by delivering written notice to each of the other Parties at the mailing addresses stated herein, 
properly executed, at least ninety (90) days before the proposed termination date. BPI and KC shall be paid 
any amounts owing, including necessary and reasonable Contract close-out costs, up to the date of 
termination as specified in the notice, less any deductions provided by this Contract or by law. BPI shall 
promptly submit its request for the termination payment, together with detailed supporting documentation. 
If BPI has any property in its possession belonging to the Generator, BPI shall account for the same and 
handle it in the manner the Generator directs. 
 
 17.2 Any Party may terminate the Contract for default in the event of a failure by either of the 
other two Parties to comply with the provisions of this Contract including, but not limited to, the following: 
 

(A) failure to perform services or other work as required; 
(B) failure to comply with any material terms or provisions of the Contract; 
(C) failure to comply with laws or regulations; 
(D) failure or delay due to inability to obtain the required employees or equipment;  
(E) failure to provide continuous and solvent business operations;  
(F) failure or delay in making any required payments. 
 

Termination for default may be delivered by mail and shall be effective upon mailing, directed to the 
defaulting Party (or Parties) at the mailing addresses stated above, setting forth the manner in which the 
Party is (or Parties are) in default. 
 
 17.2.1  In the event the Generator believes BPI is in default, the Generator may include a 
compliance schedule with the Notice of Termination, which must be met in order to avoid termination. The 
compliance schedule shall state that within a time period specified by the Generator, BPI shall submit to 
the Generator a written detailed plan describing the actions required to achieve compliance that is subject 
to the Generator’s approval. 
 
 17.2.2  In the event the Contract is terminated for default, BPI and KC will only be paid the base 
unit price for services or work delivered or performed in accordance with the Contract, less any deductions 
authorized by this Contract.  
 
 
 

Page 27

Item #6.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  13 

SECTION 18 RECORDS, REPORTS AND MEETINGS  
 
 18.1 BPI shall, for the term of the Contract and six (6) years thereafter, consistently maintain 
full, complete and accurate books of account and records related to this Contract at its principal place of 
business. These records shall also include detailed information describing the application rates to all project 
sites. The Generator shall have the right during reasonable business hours to inspect and audit such books 
and records. All books and records of account shall be maintained by BPI according to generally accepted 
accounting principles and applicable requirements of the State of Washington. 
 
 18.2 The following books of account and reports may be reviewed by the Generator and shall 
be made available upon request to the Generator: 
 

• a daily project site log (including generator, field identification, delivery dates and tonnage) 
during application of biosolids; 

 
• a weekly project site summary of activities and events; 

 
• application logs (including application rate, date, acreage and tonnage) for each project 

site that is applied;  
 

• WAC 173-308 annual report (the Generator shall assist BPI and KC in collecting and 
documenting the data required for this regulatory report); and 

 
• copies of all written correspondence relating to this project. 

 
 18.3 The Generator shall have the right during reasonable business hours to inspect the BPP 
biosolids management facilities. BPI shall provide the Generator access to perform said inspections. 
 
 18.4 The Generator and KC shall maintain records per all applicable state and federal laws. 
Each Party shall have the right during reasonable business hours to inspect the records of the other Parties. 
 
SECTION 19 INDEMNIFICATION 
 

19.1 BPI agrees that it shall be liable for and shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the  
Generator and KC, and their officers, agents, and employees, from and against any claims, actions, suits, 
costs, and damages of any nature whatsoever, including reasonable attorney’s fees in defense thereof, for 
injuries or death to persons, or damage to property, (hereinafter “Claim”), arising directly or indirectly out of 
BPI's intentional or negligent act or omission in the performance of its duties as described in this Contract, 
BPI’s breaches of this Contract, or BPI’s acts or omissions in violation of law, including fines, penalties, and 
judgments.  In the event of any Claim arising out of the concurrent negligence of BPI and the Generator, or 
BPI, the Generator, and KC, BPI’s defense and indemnification obligations under this section shall be 
limited to the extent of BPI’s negligence.  

 
19.2 KC agrees that it shall be liable for and shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the  

Generator, and its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any claims, actions, suits, costs, and 
damages of any nature whatsoever, including reasonable attorney’s fees in defense thereof, for injuries or 
death to persons, or damage to property, (hereinafter “Claim”), arising directly or indirectly out of KC’s 
intentional or negligent act or omission in the performance of its duties as described in this Contract, KC’s 
breaches of this Contract, or KC’s acts or omissions in violation of law, including fines, penalties, and 
judgments.  In the event of any Claim arising out of the concurrent negligence of KC and the Generator, or 
KC, the Generator, and BPI, KC’s defense and indemnification obligations under this section shall be limited 
to the extent of KC’s negligence.  

 
19.3 The Generator agrees that it shall be liable for and shall indemnify, defend, and hold  

Page 28

Item #6.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  14 

harmless BPI and KC, and its officers, agents, and employees, from and against any claims, actions, suits, 
costs, and damages of any nature whatsoever, including reasonable attorney’s fees in defense thereof, for 
injuries or death to persons, or damage to property, (hereinafter “Claim”), arising directly or indirectly out of 
the Generator’s intentional or negligent act or omission in the performance of its duties as described in this 
Contract, the Generator’s breaches of this Contract, or the Generator’s acts or omissions in violation of law, 
including fines, penalties, and judgments.  In the event of any Claim arising out of the concurrent negligence 
of the Generator and BPI or the Generator, KC, and BPI, the Generator’s defense and indemnification 
obligations under this section shall be limited to the extent of the Generator’s negligence.  

 
19.4  Solely for the purposes of paragraphs 19.1, 19.2, and 19.3 above, each Party, by mutual  

negotiation hereby waives any immunity that would otherwise be available against such claims under the 
Industrial Insurance provisions of Title 51 RCW.  

 
19.5 The defense and indemnification obligations under this section shall survive the  

termination of this Contract.  
 
SECTION 20 DISPUTES UNDER THIS CONTRACT 
 

20.1 In the event that a dispute arises under this Contract, then representatives from the  
Parties involved in the dispute shall meet and confer in an effort to resolve the dispute.  If the Parties’ 
representatives cannot resolve the dispute within fifteen (15) calendar days then any Party involved in the 
dispute may request that the Parties involved in the dispute engage in mediation, with each such Party to 
share equally in the costs of mediation. If the dispute is not resolved to the satisfaction of the Parties 
involved through mediation then any of the involved Parties may take whatever steps it deems appropriate, 
including but not limited to, bringing a civil action in a court of competent jurisdiction. Nothing in this section 
shall be construed to prohibit any Party from exercising its right to terminate this Contract as otherwise 
provided herein or be construed as a precondition to the exercise of such right to terminate.  

 
20.2 Pending final decision of a dispute hereunder, all Parties shall proceed diligently with the  

performance of the Contract. 
 

SECTION 21 SEVERABILITY 
 

If any part of the Contract is declared to be invalid or unenforceable, the rest of the Contract  
shall remain binding. 
 
SECTION 22 INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 

Each Party hereto is and shall perform this Contract as an independent contractor, and as such, 
shall have and maintain complete control over all of its employees, agents, and operations. None of the 
Parties nor anyone employed by them shall be, represent, act, purport to act or be deemed to be the agent, 
representative, employee or servant of any of the other Parties. 
 
SECTION 23 FORCE MAJEURE 
 

Should any of the Parties be prevented wholly, or in part, from performing their respective 
obligations under this Contract by a cause reasonably outside of and beyond the control of the Party 
affected thereby, including but not limited to war, government regulation, restriction or action, strike, lockout, 
accidents, storms, earthquake, fire, acts of God or public enemy or any similar cause beyond the control of 
the Parties “Force Majeure,” then such Party shall be excused hereunder during the time and to the extent 
that the performance of such obligation are so prevented, and such Party shall have no liability whatsoever 
for any damages, consequential or otherwise, resulting therefrom. Force Majeure does not include the 
Generator’s financial inability to pay the required payments set forth in this Contract. 
 
 
 

Page 29

Item #6.

KimM
Highlight

KimM
Sticky Note
Was previously 15 "working" days.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  15 

SECTION 24 NON-WAIVER 
 
 Failure by any of the Parties to enforce their rights under any provision of this Contract shall not be 
construed to be a waiver of that provision.  No waiver of any breach of this Contract shall be held to be a 
waiver of any other breach. 
 
SECTION 25 ASSIGNMENT 
 

No Party may assign any interest, obligation or benefit under or in this Contract or transfer any 
interest in the same, whether by assignment or novation, without the prior written consent of the other 
Parties. If assignment is approved, this Contract shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
successors and/or assigns. 
 
SECTION 26 NOTICES 
 

All notices required under this Contract shall be personally delivered or mailed by certified or 
registered mail, postage prepaid as follows: 
 
If to the Generator, addressed to: 
 
Name   Steve Banham, Public Works Director 
Address City of Lynden 

300 4th St 
Lynden, WA 98264 
banhams@lyndenwa.org 
 

If to BPI, addressed to: 
 
Name:  David K. Ruud, Operations Manager 
Address: Boulder Park, Inc. 
  P.O. Box 285, Mansfield, WA  98830 
  (509) 683-1142 
  ruudbpi@aol.com 
 
If to KC, addressed to: 
 
Name:  Jake Finlinson, Biosolids Project Manager 
Address: King County Wastewater Treatment Division 
  201 S. Jackson Street, #KSC-NR-0512, Seattle, WA  98104 
  (206) 477-3524 
  jake.finlinson@kingcounty.gov 
 
Or to such other address as any Party shall specify by written notice so given. Notices shall be deemed to 
have been given and received as of the date so delivered or three (3) business days after being deposited 
in the US mail. 
 
SECTION 27 ENTIRE CONTRACT; AMENDMENT 
 
 This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties concerning the subject matter 
hereof and supersedes any and all other communications, representations, proposals, understandings or 
agreements, either written or oral, between the Parties with respect to such subject matter. This Contract 
may not be modified or amended, in whole or in part, except in writing signed by all Parties. 
 
 
 
 

Page 30

Item #6.

mailto:ruudbpi@aol.com
mailto:jake.finlinson@kingcounty.gov


 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  16 

 
SECTION 28       COUNTERPARTS; ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES   
 

This Contract may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an 
original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  This Contract may be 
executed using electronic signatures.   

  
SECTION 29       AUTHORITY   
 

The undersigned represents that they are fully authorized to enter into this Contract on behalf of 
the Party for whom they sign. Upon full execution of this Contract, this Contract shall be binding on each 
Party.  Each Party has had the opportunity to review this document with an attorney of their choice. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 31

Item #6.



 

CONTRACT NO. 21-0002  17 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Contract to be executed as of the date set 
forth below. 
 
 
 

CITY OF LYNDEN     BOULDER PARK, INC. 
 
By         By         

   Scott Korthuis, Mayor         Leroy Thomsen, President 
 
 
Date         Date         
 
 
 

KING COUNTY 
 
By         

Mark Isaacson 
Director, Wastewater Treatment Division 

 
 
Date         
 
 
        Approved as to form only: 
 
 
       
Verna Bromley, Sr. Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 
 
 
       
Date 
 
 

Page 32

Item #6.



Year 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Number of Shipments: 64 58 64 79 60 79

Total Weight Shipped (wet tons): 1892.02 1632.19 1790.12 2445.15 1543.92 2161.81

Base Pricing: $54.09 $57.17 $62.27 $63.87 $65.80 $68.02 $69.47 $71.97 Averages
Percentage Increase : 5.7% 8.9% 2.6% 3.0% 3.4% 2.1% 3.6% 4.3%

Total Paid to Boulder Park (using base pricing): $102,339.36 $93,312.30 $111,470.77 $156,171.73 $101,589.94 $147,046.32 $121,918.21

Price per Dry Ton: $744.50 $654.46 $625.14 $449.46 $542.31 $556.48

BOULDER PARK SUMMARY TABLE

Page 33

Item #6.



Main St.
Main St.

Front St.

Kok Rd.
Birch Bay Lynden Rd.

19th St.
S.19th St.

Grover St.

Front St.

E. Grover St.

E. Front St.

Drayton S t.

Edgewate r L n.

Aaron Dr.

Kamm Rd.

Line Rd.

Northwood Rd.

Vinup Rd.

Bender Rd.

Depot Rd.

Sunrise Dr.

Benson Rd.

Pine St.

Double Ditch Rd.

14th St.

E. H o mestead Blvd.

Bradley Rd.

Ea
s t

wo
od

W
ay

Berthusen Rd.

3rd   St.

E . M a y b
er

r y
Dr

.

Front St.

S. 1st S t.

S.17th St.
17th St.

Guide Meridian Rd.

E. Badger Rd.?Þ

?Ù

4th St.

Tromp Rd.

Duffner Dr.

Nooksack Ave.

B.C. Ave.

Bridgeview Dr.

Homestead Blvd.

Cedar Dr.

7th St.

Riverview Rd.

City of Lynden, WACity of Lynden, WA

0 ½¼
Miles

±

Snow Removal RoutesSnow Removal Routes

1st
2nd
Cleared by State (WSDOT)
Owner's Responsibility (Private Street)
Other Streets

Roadways
Clearing priorities may change
depending upon type of storm

event and other conditions.

Public Works, City of Lynden
(360) 354-3446

Questions or concerns? Contact:

Snow Clearing Priority

WTA Bus Route
Alternative Transportation

Contact Whatcom Transportation Authority (WTA)
for information regarding bus route changes during
a specific weather event. (360)-676-RIDE.

This map is for reference only and is not legally binding,
nor should this map be used for legally binding decisions.

Responsibility of Home Owners' Association or Owner(s)
Private Streets

Abner Ln.
Andress Ln.
Birch St.
Bluebell Dr.
Buttercup Dr.
Cambridge Dr.
Creekview Crest

Daisy Ln.
Duffner Ct. Dr.
Fieldstone Loop
Greenview Cir.
Harrison Pl.
Heartland Dr.
Heather Ln.

Island Green Wy.
James Cir.
La Villa Dr.
Leatherwood Pl.
Littlefield Ln.
Mercedes Pl.
North Prairie Ln.

Oakwood Ct.
Rosemary Wy.
Twin Sister Ct.
Twin Sister Loop
W. Maberry Dr.
Wood Creek Condo Dr.
Woodfield Pl.

DRAFT

Page 34

Item #8.



Fire Dept. &
City Hall Annex Library

Community
Center 4th St.

Parking
Lot

City
Hall

7th St.
Parking

Lot

Edson St.

Liberty St.

Grover St.

Front St.

Judson Street Alley

6th St.7th St.

5th St.

4th St.

3rd St.
2nd St.

14,000 ft 2 8,100 ft 2

11,000 ft 2

37,200 ft 2

23,400 ft 2

15,600 ft 2

Drayton St.

5,600 ft 2

19th St.

23,500 ft 2

YMCAPolice Dept.

Path: \\Saturn\gis\Projects\Public Works\SnowRoutes\ParkingLotsDraft.mxd

Downtown

Benson Rd.

W. Park St.
Piper St.

Sunrise Dr. E. Sunrise Dr.

Depot Rd.

Primrose Ct.

Lilac Ct.

Clematis Ct.

220,200 ft 2

Municipal Airport Facilities & Runway

Police Dept

Downtown

Airport

YMCA

Water Treatment Plant
Waste Water Treatment Plant

0 200

Feet

0 200

Feet

0 200

Feet

0 200

Feet

Clearing Priority
1st
2nd

Parking Lot & Facility Areas Snow RemovalParking Lot & Facility Areas Snow Removal
City of Lynden, WA

For Internal Use Only
¯

6th St. Aly.

Riverview Rd.

21,600 ft 2

6th St. Aly.
Waste Water Treatment Plant

25,400 ft 2

0 200

Feet

0 200

Feet

Water Treatment Plant Waste Water Treatment Plant

DRAFT

Page 35

Item #8.



17T
H
ST

MAIN ST

¯ 0 40 80

Feet

Features
Road Extension

Assessment Area (Water, Sewer, & Sidewalk)

Assessment Area (Water, & Sewer)

5

5

5

5

Properties all in RS-100 (max. density 4 units/acre)

273.5'

10,769 sqft

178.1'
112.9'

5

5

5

5

5
5

5

5

Exhibit:__

28,033 sqft

7,829 sqft

10,592 sqft130.1'

5

5

5

5

A

B

C

D

Page 36

Item #10.



 17th Street Extension
Benefitted Property

Preliminary Assessment Roll

Date November 4, 2020

Parcel 

# Parcel Size Parcel Size

Parcel 

Frontage Sidewalk  Water General Sewer

East/West Side 

Sewer

   Tax ID No. Owner Address 1 Address 2  (acres)  (sqft)  (feet) (per LF) (per Area) (per Area) (per Area)

East Side

1 400319 A WILLIAM R & ADRIA E CUMMINS 1711 Main St. Lynden, WA  98264 0.243          10,592        112.9          $6,886.90 $6,544.37 $3,107.60 $2,593.84 $19,132.70

2 400319 B MARINA A TIMMERMANS (ESTATE) 1703 Main St Lynden, WA  98264 0.180          7,829          178.1          $10,864.10 $4,837.22 $2,296.96 $1,917.21 $19,915.49

West Side 18,421        4,511.05

3 400319 C MARINA A TIMMERMANS (ESTATE) 1703 Main St Lynden, WA  98264 0.644          28,033        273.5          16,683.5 17,320.45 $8,224.63 $1,613.83 $43,842.41

4 400319 D WILLIAM R & ADRIA E CUMMINS 1711 Main St. Lynden, WA  98264 0.247          10,769        NA NA 6,653.73 $3,159.53 $619.96 $10,433.21

38,802        2,233.79

TOTAL 1.314 57,223       $34,434.50 $35,355.76 $16,788.72

Bid Item Unit Price Units Cost per LF

46 Sidewalk $51.00 SY $34.00

42 Curb & Gutter $27.00 LF $27.00

Bid Item Water Unit Price Units Qty Cost

66 12" Water Main (17th St) $56.00 LF 286 $16,016.00

66 12" Water Main (Main St) $56.00 LF 60 $3,360.00

72 12" Gate Valve $2,800.00 each 3 $8,400.00

74 Hydrant $4,750.00 each 1 $4,750.00

75 Service - 1 inch diameter $1,500.00 each $0.00

Subtotal: $32,526.00

Tax: 8.7% $2,829.76

$35,355.76

Bid Item Sewer Unit Price Units Qty Cost

82 PVC Sewer Pipe - 8 inch diameter $46.00 LF 270 $12,420.00

79 Manhole $3,025.00 each 1 $3,025.00

Subtotal: $15,445.00

Tax: 8.7% $1,343.72

$16,788.72

Bid Item East Side Sewer Only Unit Price Units Qty Cost

80 PVC Sewer Pipe - 4 inch diameter $35.00 LF 30 $1,050.00

81 PVC Sewer Pipe - 6 inch diameter $50.00 LF 35 $1,750.00

83 Cleanout $675.00 each 2 $1,350.00

Subtotal: $4,150.00

Tax: 8.7% $361.05

$4,511.05

Bid Item West Side Sewer Only Unit Price Units Qty Cost

82 PVC Sewer Pipe - 8 inch diameter $46.00 LF 30 $1,380.00

83 Cleanout $675.00 each 1 $675.00

Subtotal: $2,055.00

Tax: 8.7% $178.79

$2,233.79

Construction Costs Incurred by City - 17th Street Extension Project

Lo
t

TOTAL 

ASSESSMENT

C:\Users\AzureAdmin\AppData\Local\Temp\tmpFBD6.tmp

Page 37

Item #10.


	Top
	1.	Approve Minutes of October 7, 2020
	10-October 7 2020

	2.	2021 Budget Addendum: Utility Rates and Fees
	Utility Rates &amp; Fees Addendums A-F 2021 Budget - Draft  Rev 10-21-20

	3.	302 Front Street ADA Parking
	302 Front Street Parking Request - Revisited

	4.	Cured In Place Pipe (CIPP) Projects
	5.	Industrial Condensate Pipeline Hannegan Manholes
	6.	Biosolids Beneficial Use Services - Boulder Park Contract Renewal
	2021_BPP_DRAFT_BPI-KC-LYNDEN-CONTRACT_2020OCT15- mk comments 2020.10.21
	BoulderPark Summary 2014-2020

	7.	Lynden Rec Center (Old YMCA)
	8.	2020-2021 Draft Snow Removal Plan
	SnowRemovalPlan2020Draft
	SnowRemovalPlan-ParkingLots2020Draft

	9.	PROJECT - Airport PAPI Lights
	10.	PROJECT - 17th Street Extension
	17th St Assessment Area Map 10-16-20
	Water-Sewer-Sidewalk Preliminary Assessment Roll - no map

	11.	PROJECT - Berthusen Park Restrooms
	12.	PROJECT - Judson LID
	13.	PROJECT - Pepin Creek Main Street Bridge
	14.	PROJECT - Fire Station Renovation
	Bottom

